
 
 
 

 
Democratic Services   

Riverside, Temple Street, Keynsham, Bristol BS31 1LA   

Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard   

Direct Line: 01225 394411  Date: 8 November 2013 

Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of the Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillor John Bull 
Councillor Roger Symonds 
Councillor Colin Barrett 
Councillor Paul Myers 
Councillor Charles Gerrish 
Councillor Barry Macrae 
Councillor Nigel Roberts 
 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel: Monday, 18th November, 2013  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Panel, to be held on Monday, 18th November, 2013 at 5.30 pm in the Council Chamber  - 
Guildhall, Bath. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

 
Michaela Gay 
for Chief Executive 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

 

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Michaela Gay who 
is available by telephoning Bath 01225 394411 or by calling at the Riverside Offices 
Keynsham (during normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Michaela Gay as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Michaela Gay as 
above. 
 

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 

Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

5. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

6. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - Monday, 18th November, 2013 
 

at 5.30 pm in the Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

2. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out 
under Note 6. 

 

 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare. 

(b) The nature of their interest. 

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

 

5. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  

 

6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING  

 At the time of publication no notifications had been received. 

 

 

7. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 30TH SEPTEMBER 2013 (Pages 5 - 10) 



 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 30th September 2013 are attached for 
confirmation as a correct record. 

 

8. IMPACT ON CUSTOMERS OF ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND 
WORKPLACES PROGRAMMES (Pages 11 - 18) 

 There will be a presentation at the meeting. The presentation slides are attached. 

 

9. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT (Pages 19 - 28) 

 There will be a presentation at the meeting on Performance Management. The 
presentation slides are attached. 

 

10. PROCUREMENT (Pages 29 - 46) 

 There will be a presentation on ‘Procurement’, slides are attached. 

 

11. UPDATE ON BUDGET SAVINGS AND INCOME DELIVERY (Pages 47 - 54) 

 There will be a presentation on ‘Budget Savings and Income Delivery’. Slides are 
attached. 

 

12. MEDIUM TERM PLANS AND 2014/15 BUDGET UPDATE REPORT (Pages 55 - 76) 

 The report ‘Medium Term Plans and 2014/15 Budget Update’ is attached. Please note, 
two extra appendices are attached (these were tabled at the meeting)  

 

13. CABINET MEMBER UPDATE  

 The Cabinet Member will update the panel on any relevant issues. This will be a verbal 
update. 

 

14. PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 77 - 80) 

 The report attached presents the latest workplan for the Panel. 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Michaela Gay who can be contacted on  
01225 394411. 
 
 



 

 

19 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 30th September, 2013 

 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 

 
RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Monday, 30th September, 2013 
 

Present:- Councillors John Bull (Chair), Roger Symonds (Vice-Chair), Paul Myers, 
Charles Gerrish, Barry Macrae and Nigel Roberts 
 

 
26 

  
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 
 

27 

  
EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure. 

 
 

28 

  
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 

Councillor Barrett sent his apologies that he could not attend the meeting. 
 

29 

  
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

There were none. 
 

30 

  
TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  

 

There was none. 
 

31 

  
ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 

STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 

THIS MEETING  

 

1. A member of the public, Pat Ryan (Bath against Cuts) made a statement to 
the Panel on the subject of ‘Impact of Council Tax Support Scheme and 
Bedroom Tax’ (A copy of the statement can be found on the Panel’s Minute 
Book and attached to these minutes).  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Symonds, Ms Ryan explained that, 
at the Citizens Advice Bureau where she works, cases regarding benefits and 
debt advice were rising. 
 
Councillor Bull asked Ms Ryan if she knew that a majority of Councillors had 
asked the Cabinet to consider alleviating the Council Tax Benefit cut. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 

 

20 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 30th September, 2013 

 

The Strategic Director for Resources – Andrew Pate advised the Panel that 
they may like to consider the comments in the statement during Item 10 
‘Welfare Reform’ when the comments can be put into context. 
 
Councillor Bellotti – Cabinet Member for Community Resources explained that 
Mrs Ryan had spoken at the Council meeting. He further explained that the 
Council had taken the decision not to increase council tax over the last two 
years. He explained that there is a social fund which provides food, clothing 
and help with gas and electric. He added that money had also been allocated 
to the connecting families’ agenda. Councillor Bull stated that he felt it would 
be better if people had the benefits that they need rather than relying on the 
social fund. 
 
Councillor Cherry Beath explained that she is Vice-Chair of the Wellbeing 
Policy and Development Panel. She stated that she welcomed the statement 
by Pat Ryan and explained that the Wellbeing Panel would be monitoring how 
the changes regarding Welfare Reform will affect people. 
 
The Chairman announced that the Panel noted the statement and would take 
the points into consideration, especially in the context of Item 10 on Welfare 
Reform. The Panel agreed to forward the following point to the Housing and 
Major Projects Panel: 
 

“We call on the council to work in conjunction with housing associations in 
Bath&NES to establish  a ‘no eviction’ policy for residents in arrears for either council 
tax or the bedroom tax and to identify ways of ameliorating the impact of this 
measure on the people affected by it#” 

 
 

2. A member of the public, Anne Robbins registered to ask the Panel three 
questions on the subject of ‘Grand Parade and Undercroft’ (A copy of the 
questions can be found on the Panel’s Minute Book and attached to these 
minutes). Mrs Robbins was unable to attend the meeting. The Chair referred 
to the questions and asked the officers to provide an answer within 5 clear 
days of the meeting.  

 
 
 

32 

  
MINUTES - 15TH JULY 2013  

 

The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous meeting as a true record and they 
were duly signed by the Chairman. 
 

33 

  
WORKPLACES - OFFICE ACCOMMODATION BRIEFING  

 

Dave Thompson Programme Director: Organisational Development gave a 
presentation to the Panel (a copy of the presentation is on the minute book for the 
Panel and also on the website). The presentation covered the following: 
 

• ‘One Council’ Organisational Development Programme – three workstreams 

• Workplaces: Changing how we work 

Page 6



 

 

21 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 30th September, 2013 

 

• Five Buildings 

• Three workstyles 

• 1.500 staff: 1,000 desks 

• Changing how we work 

• One Council – What it feels like for Services, Teams and Staff 

• One Council OD Programme. 
 
The Panel raised the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Macrae asked about staff that did not work in offices such as drivers and 
also customers. The Programme Director explained that manual workers are outside 
the scope of this project. The Strategic Director for Resources added that there may 
be an opportunity to extend the programme, he stated that the point is taken 
regarding non office workers but that this programme tackles the fact that a lot of 
office staff will be changing their environment. In terms of customers, the Strategic 
Director explained that there is a programme for improving services to customers. 
William Harding, Head of Human Resources added that the ’10 in 100’ project was 
open to all staff, not just office staff and that there is a ‘back to the shop floor’ where 
the Chief Executive meets workers. Councillor Macrae stated that he was heartened 
in part but felt that an opportunity could be missed with the workers out on the road 
as they are often closest to the residents. 
 
Councillor Myers asked if the staff survey results showed that people believed in 
‘One Council’. The Head of Human Resources explained that the staff survey results 
had been used to inform the presentation, he also explained that the results are 18 
months old. Councillor Myers stated that it was worrying that the surveys are not 
annual. The officer explained that smaller service based surveys are also carried out. 
Ian Savigar – Divisional Director for Customer Services explained that he would be 
working across all services on issues such as phone manner etc. He also explained 
that small surveys are done with customers that come in and he pointed to the fact 
that the new customer feedback programme would be coming in soon. 
 
Councillor Gerrish stated that a lot of work is going on that is not yet filtering through 
to the public. He stated that the effort is certainly paying off in terms of the One Stop 
Shop. He stated that sometimes it is hard to get across to the public that in some 
circumstances, the Council cannot act on something due to legislation. 
 
Councillor Macrae stated that he was concerned over the priority given to training 
and working from home but the priority should be answering the phone and delivery 
of services. The Head of Human Resources stated that much of the training referred 
to here is behavioural such as phone answering. Councillor Pritchard stated that 
there is a danger of isolation in working at home. The Strategic Director explained 
that the ratio of 1000 desks: 1500 people is achievable without pushing home 
working. 
 
Following a concern raised by Councillor Symonds, The Programme Director 
explained that office moves should be minimized as much as possible. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers. 
 

Page 7



 

 

22 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 30th September, 2013 

 

34 

  
STAFF RESOURCES - ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND STAFF 

SUPPORT  

 

William Harding – Head of Human Resources gave a presentation to the Panel (a 
copy of the presentation is on the minute book for the Panel and also on the 
website). The presentation covered the following: 
 

• Supporting staff through change – Training through Corporate Training 
Programme 

• On line/e learning resources 

• Outplacement Services to those formally at risk 

• Employee Assistance Programme 
 
The Panel raised the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Macrae stated that he felt there was sensible and serious provision for 
those at risk, he stated that there should also be some focus on those staff that are 
staying. The Head of Human Resources stated that he would circulate a briefing 
note to Panel members on the work that is done on this. Councillor Nigel Roberts 
stated that the presentation shows members that the organisation is thinking and 
caring. 
 
Councillor Myers asked about tracking people who are leaving. The officer explained 
that leavers are tracked and that a brutal measure is that there have been no tribunal 
cases in the last 12 months. He also explained that a ‘leaver’s survey’ is being 
brought in. He reported that, in the main, the majority view is that the Council has 
behaved well in the circumstances. 
 
Councillor Gerrish stated that he was interested to know the outcome of the work of 
‘Workshop Solutions’ – The officer will circulate information to Panel members. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers. 
 

35 

  
WELFARE REFORM  

 

Ian Savigar – Divisional Director Customer Services introduced the report to the 
Panel. He pointed out that there had been an amendment to page 11 of the report.  
 
The Panel raised the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Macrae stated that he was heartened to hear the work being done. He 
asked about the relationship with Curo and housing providers. The officer explained 
that it was difficult to answer for them but reported that they did have a welfare 
support team. 
 
Councillor Gerrish asked about the availability of 1/2 bedroom houses. He stated that 
if people are willing to move (due to the ‘bedroom tax’) and ‘down house’ then 
appropriate houses should be available so they are not penalised. The officer 
reported that it did not take long to re house people so this was not an issue at the 
moment. 
 

Page 8



 

 

23 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 30th September, 2013 

 

Councillor Gerrish asked if the government are listening to our feedback. The officer 
reported that the main area of learning is around digital access, there will be a rising 
demand for PC’s and some people will need support to complete their claim online. 
He stated that this had been fed back to the government. Councillor Gerrish stated 
that there should be a strong message to the government that isolated communities 
in rural areas cannot always access PC’s. 
 
Councillor Symonds asked if there had been an increase in people going to CAB 
(Citizen’s Advice Bureau) on the issues of benefits.  The officer reported that 60% of 
the workload for CAB and SWAN (South West Advisory Network) was working with 
people on benefit claims. Pat Ryan (CAB) added that both benefits and debt advice 
is on the increase. She also reported that there are delays involved in the disability 
living allowance and people are approaching the CAB about this. 
 
Councillor Macrae asked if there could be some feedback to the development control 
department about the need for more 1/2 bedroomed houses. The officer stated that 
he would feed this back. 
 
It was agreed that an update on Welfare Reform be added to the future workplan for 
March 2014. 
 

36 

  
REVIEW OF COUNCIL LETTINGS FOR USE OF ROOMS  

 

Stephen Bird – Head of Heritage Services introduced the report. He explained that a 
previous event had acted as a catalyst to tightening the terms and conditions. He 
explained that now, a simple assessment is carried out with every application and 
staff are more cautious. Councillor Bull explained that the Cabinet Member is the 
ultimate longstop but that the Cabinet member would be advised by Stephen Bird. 
 
The Chair thanked the officer for the information.  
 

37 

  
PROPERTY - BUDGET SAVINGS REVIEW  

 

Derek Quilter – Divisional Director Project Management introduced the report. 
 
The Panel raised the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Gerrish raised a concern that the savings proposed in the budget are not 
coming through – he asked if the savings would be achieved in the timescale. 
Andrew Pate, Strategic Director for Resources explained that there were tough 
targets for the department and that only one dimension of this had been staffing. He 
explained that there had been a lot of restructuring and cutting out duplication. He 
stated that he was confident that the targets would be achieved but the question was 
the timescale. He assured members that it would not be a recurring problem.  
 
Councillor Bellotti – Cabinet Member for Community Resources stated that the 
savings are not all made up from staff cuts. He made the following points: that the 
budget will have over and underspends but would come in roughly on target; there 
had been a substantial and unexpected increase in the income for the Roman Baths; 
a lot of duplication has been cut out in the Property department and there are now 10 
academies so there is not such a call on Council services.  

Page 9



 

 

24 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 30th September, 2013 

 

 
38 

  
CABINET MEMBER UPDATE  

 

Councillor David Bellotti – Cabinet Member for Community Resources updated the 
Panel on the following: 
 

• Procurement Fair on 15th October 2013 engaging with local businesses on 
‘Think Local’; 

• Four Budget Fairs in November to consult the community; 

• Keynsham regeneration is on time and on budget; 

• Workplaces – 200-250 posts will go over a 2-3 year timescale but the number 
of compulsory redundancies will be small. 

 
 

39 

  
PANEL WORKPLAN  

 

With the following additions and amendments, the Panel noted the workplan: 
 

• Impact on Customers of Budget Cuts/Savings (Councillor Macrae suggestion 
for November 2013). To include the next customer satisfaction survey result. 

• Grand Parade and Undercroft to move to March 2014. 

• Councillor Myers asked that the Panel look at customer satisfaction data and 
geographical differences in feedback. 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.00 pm  
 

Chair(person)  

 
Date Confirmed and Signed  

 
Prepared by Democratic Services 

 

Page 10



11

The “One Council” approach

We’re already a “good Council”

• With many examples of great practice 

and lots of positive outcomes for our 

communities. 

“One Council” focused on our 

communities & customers

Becoming 

Excellent

What does “One 

Council” mean?

• Being more ‘joined up’?

• Not passing customers 

from pillar to post?

• We all understand what 

the Council wants to 

achieve?

• We all work towards the 

same goals?

• We understand what our 

customers want / need 

and how to provide it?

HOW we work as ONE for the 

community and our customers

ONLY promise what we can deliver

NURTURING creativity & 

innovation

EXCELLENT in everything we do

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 11



22

Easy to access 

‘joined up’ services 

for local people

Efficient partnership working to 

support the most vulnerable

Council

Services

Partner 

Organisations

Customer

Excellence

Programme

Welfare

Reform

impacts

Customer Service vision� 

P
age 12



33

Customer Service Principles

1. Put the Customer First

2. Easy Access to Services - Right Time, Right Place

3. Do it Once, Do it Right

4. Efficient & Effective

1.
Four principles 

P
age 13



44

1. Improve Access to services/information 

• Design cost effective, efficient and user friendly means 

of contacting the council and then encourage our 

customers to use the channels that work best for them

• Provide a full range of contact channels for each of our 

services, with some channels providing enhanced 

access for customers with special requirements

2. Avoid Unnecessary Contacts

• Reduce the need for our customers to contact us by 

reducing red tape, automating processes and working 

with partner authorities to provide “joined up services”

3. Ensure Digital Inclusion

• Ensure that citizens who do not have access to digital 

channels at home or work are not disadvantaged when 

communicating with the council ”

Principles for How we work� 

Customer Service 

Excellence

• Listen to and understand our 

customers. 

• Join up internally, make best use of 

time and resources, act as a single 

organisation.

• Work in partnership with others 

moving from ‘one council’ to ‘one 

public service’. 

• Clear about what we can and can’t 

provide. 

• Share information and best 

practice.

• Empower our staff to make 

decisions and innovate, to improve 

services for customers. 

P
age 14



55

Customer Services 

Excellence

Consitent style & 

standards SERVICES

TELEPHONY

Consistent style &  

Standards 

FACE TO FACE

• CCTV monitoring

• Switchboard 

•Out of Hours 

services

• Emergency 

Management

• 8 Libraries 

• 1 Mobile library

• 3.5 Community Hubs

•Bath One Stop Shop

•Hollies OSS

•Riverside

Consider 

rationalisation 

of Community 

Assets. 

Keynsham will 

have a joint 

Library & OSS.

Customer Services Excellence� 

Getting ready for the future�

Supporting 

Technology

Supporting Technology, HR and Organisational Development support

Changing How We Work

Link into existing 

OD programme of 

Staff Engagement

Identify gaps & 

resolve 

Build into future 

OD

P
age 15



“One Council” Organisational 

Development Programme

Three Workstreams

Staff and Leadership 

Engagement

Workplaces, Customer 

Excellence & Connecting 

Communities:

“Changing How We 

Work”

10 in 100

10 projects delivered by staff 

in 100 days

OD Programme Supporting staff through change :
o Challenges of putting Customer at the heart of what we do & ethos of ‘One Conversation’

o Impacts of introducing mandatory House Standards & Style for customer contacts

P
age 16



77

1. Reduce Face to Face Offices
• Council & Partners available in a single location 

• Customer’s needs identified & met in one visit / call

• Resources focussed on most vulnerable 

• Many organisations sharing more efficient use of public funds 

• Cross-skilled teams to maximise resources & increase flexibility

2. Limited number of Published Telephone Nos
• Provide fast access to an expert officer and to reduce the amount of irritating low value calls 

that our residents have to make

• use the emerging mobile phone technology in a tactical manner to provide better access to 

information for targeted user groups, to reduce costs, increase speed of communication or 

reduce direct contact

• Corporate telephone teams first point of contact using consistent technology Contact Centre 

Management (CCM) to increase flexibility

• Consistent standards, monitoring and publication of how we are doing

• Support for lone workers & contact for building management

• Proactive responses using shared technology and resources

3. Working differently with the Technology to help
• CRM & Sharepoint widely used or accessed across the organisation giving a single customer 

view & the ability to collect data once and share (appropriately) many times

• Provide a single, comprehensive, easy to access and up to date website that allows anyone 

to transact and interact with the council 24/7

• Reduce the amount of post/paper and email communication by better use of electronic 

channels and work to consistent standards of response when used

• Improve the use of social media to reach a wider audience, quickly & in real time to improve 

engagement with the community & drive users to the website also supporting channel shift

Customer Service Offer

Customer 

Service 

Excellence

Services are;

• more accessible

• more convenient

• more responsive 

• more cost 

effective

• targeted to meet 

the needs of the 

community

P
age 17



88

The Role of Customer Service

Impact on Customers�

� Will have improved Experience and have more choice to access 

services when & how they want to

� Customers at the heart of what we do – so customers feel 

listened to and can see changes !

Customer Service a corporate centre of Excellence

and are there to support!

Impacts on Services�

� Continuous improvement likely need our support

� Priority of support may be driven by financial or customer driven need for 

changes to how we work

� Consistent standards & monitoring supports corporate CSE accreditation

Impact on Staff�

� May need more customer service training to support 

cultural & attitudinal changes as well as working differently 

& from different places

P
age 18



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

Resources PDS :  Performance 

Management Update

Steve Harman

Strategic Performance Manager

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 19



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

Old World Pre - 2010

• National Performance Framework

• Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA)

• Audit Commission

• VFM Assessment

• National Performance Indicators (300+)

• Council wide and Service Inspections (Audit 
Commission, Ofsted, CQC)

• National Benchmarking and League Tables

P
age 20



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

New World - Post 2010 

• 3 National Frameworks (100 indicators)

�Adult Social Care

�Children’s Safeguarding

�Public Health

• Service Inspections (Ofsted and CQC)

• VFM Assessment

• National Code of Transparency

• National Data Set

• Local Benchmarking

P
age 21



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

Revised Local Performance Framework

PERFORMANCE SOURCE DATA (the Council’s ‘Body of Evidence’)

e.g. KPIs, VfM Data, Reforms Updates, Adhoc Intelligence, HR Data, Risk, Complaints, Budget Plans, Service Updates

Government 

Reforms and 

Intelligence

Monthly

Performance 

Newsletter

Quarterly:

January, April, 

July, October

Organisational 

Health Report

Quarterly:

March, June, 

Sept, Dec

KPI Exception

Report 

Quarterly:

January, April, 

July, October

Service 

Delivery 

Programme

Half-Yearly:

October, April

Corporate Risk 

Report

Quarterly:

February, May, 

August, Nov

Economic 

Report

Quarterly:

January, April, 

July, October

‘BECOMING EXCELLENT’

BUSINESS REVIEW MEETINGS

Quarterly corporate challenge by the CX based on the preceding quarter’s performance data

P
age 22



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

Revised Local Performance Framework

• More flexibility

• Fewer indicators

• Concentrate on local priorities as well as national 
issues

• Better links to the Budget  and Resources allocation

P
age 23



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

Some examples of current practice

• Council Annual Report 

• Annual Service Delivery Programme

• Scrutiny Panel Reports
– (EYCYP March – Safeguarding and LAC service improvement 

Plan)

– (PTE July – Road Accidents in Banes)

– (ECD July – Annual Report Police Commissioner)

• Ofsted & CQC inspections

• Voice box residents Surveys

• Staff Surveys

P
age 24



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

‘One Council’ - What is it?

• Totally flexible framework that encourages us all to work together to better 

understand where we are going as an organisation.

• Helps prioritise resources and the part we all play in shaping the future. 

• Embracing change, stimulating creative thinking, innovating and celebrating our 

many achievements. 

• Being externally focused, seeing things from the perspective of the customer 

and delivering better services to our wider community.

• One Conversation between public services and our communities,  changing the 

way we deliver services. 

• Leaders work collaboratively and managers help unblock obstacles staff 

encounter.

P
age 25



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

One Performance Conversation

P
age 26



Bath and North East Somerset - The place to live, work and visit

Request for Members

• What Performance Information do you want?

• How do you want to be involved in the “Performance 
Conversation”?P

age 27



P
age 28

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

“Think Local”

The Council’s New Procurement 

Strategy

Resources – Policy & 

Development Update A
genda Item

 10

P
age 29



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Legal Context – The Old

» Public Contract Regulations 2006

» Treaty of Rome and EU Procurement 

Directives

» Contract Law

» Contract Standing Orders

P
age 30



The Changing Landscape

Transparency

Localism

P
age 31



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Legal Context - The New

» Localism Act
» Commissioning Intentions

» Right to Challenge

» Public Services (Social Value) Act
» Social & Environmental Benefits alongside Financial 

Efficiency

» Changes to EU Procurement Directives
» Radical changes imminent 

» Removal of Part A & B Service distinction

» More flexible processes

P
age 32



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Revised EU Directives

» “Flexibilisation” of Process – Negotiated 
Procedures

» Reducing Timescales

» Innovative Partnerships Procedure

» Removal of distinction between Part A & B 
Services

» Use of Self Declarations

» Exclusion for Poor Performance

» E Procurement – Dynamic Purchasing 
Systems

P
age 33



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Case Law

» Alcatel – Standstill Periods

» Pressetext – Post Contract Change

» Beentjes,Nord-pas-de-Calais, SIAC, 
Concordia Buses  – Social & 
Environmental Policy(Most Economically 
advantageous Tender MEAT)

» ENV and Wienstrom judgment –
Ecological Criteria and links to contracts

P
age 34



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

P
age 35



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

What does the Council spend its 

budgets on?

£0.00

£10.00

£20.00

£30.00

£40.00

£50.00

£60.00

Building, Construction &
Civil Engineering

Care Corporate and IT Waste, Leisure &
Transport

M
il
li
o
n
s

People

Places

Resources

P
age 36



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

What proportion of 

Council business is 

awarded to local 

suppliers? 

35%

19%

46%

B&NES West of England

Other UK

43%

57%

SME Other

What proportion of 

Council business is 

awarded to SMEs?

P
age 37



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

“Think Local”

» New Procurement Strategy

» Agreed by Cabinet and formally launched on 15th

October 2013 by Cllr Bellotti to local Small & 

Medium Sized Enterprises (SME’s) and Micro 

Businesses at a “Meet the Buyer Event”

» Supported by the Federation Of Small Businesses, 

Curo and the Government Procurement Service

» Very successful launch attended by over 100 

companies.

P
age 38



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

What outcomes will this deliver? -

» Local suppliers will be targeted to bid for Council 

business

» Help to stimulate SME‟s and Micro Businesses

» Decisions based on whole life costs and “social value”

P
age 39



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Supporting the Changes - External

» Updated Internet Pages - Selling to the 

Council (Further changes to be made)

» Draft Suppliers Guide

» Draft Sustainable Procurement Code & 

Guide

» Training & Support Offer

» Use of Social Media

P
age 40



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Supporting the Changes - Internal

» New Procurement Intranet Site – (launch in 
November)

» Commissioning & Procurement Framework

» Improved Spend Analysis Tools & 
Dashboards (in development)

» Training

» Revised E Procurement Processes

» Social Value Toolkit 

P
age 41



Develop the 

Commissioning 

Plan

Service Design

Develop the Procurement 

Plan

Influence the Market

Undertake the 

Procurement 

Process
Performance & Contract 

Management
Contract 

Award

& 

Implementation

Review Commissioning & 

Procurement Plans

Evidence/Needs Analysis

Market Analysis

Listen 

& Engage

Review Secure Services

Analyse Plan

P
age 42



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Social Value Policy & Toolkit

» Builds on new Procurement Strategy & 
recommendations from Apprenticeship policy 
development 

» Increase Targeted Recruitment & Training through 
Council’s Procurement Processes 

» Targets supply chain opportunities

» Allows innovation to deliver Social Value 
objectives

» Cost neutral

P
age 43



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Next Steps

» Revised Contract Standing Orders

» Revised Procurement Structure

» Training

» Governance – Policing the changes

P
age 44



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

P
age 45



P
age 46

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Resources PDS

18 November 2013

Budget Savings & Income 

Delivery Update

A
genda Item

 11

P
age 47



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Background

» Full Council February 2013 Approved a 3-yr 

Medium Term Service and Resource Plan.

» Included Savings and Additional Income 

Requirements

» These total £27.347M over three years as follows:

» 2013/14 = £11.630M

» 2014/15 = £ 8.428M

» 2015/16 = £ 7.289M

» Separate MTSRP item gives future budget position 

update.

P
age 48



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Delivery & Monitoring

» Individual Service Action Plans in place for all 

Directorates.

» Includes Implementation & Delivery Plans for 2013/14

» Delivery Plans for 2014/2015 & 2015/2016 being 

developed and implemented.

» Savings and Income are individually monitored on a 

monthly basis as part of Outturn Reporting.

» Risk (RAG) rating attached to each item as part of this.

» Reported as part of monthly budget monitoring including 

SMT, Informal Cabinet and management teams.

» Latest position reflected in quarterly reports to Open 

Cabinet.

P
age 49



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Savings & Income Update (1)

» Of £11.6M Identified for 2013/2014 - £10.5M is currently 

classified as Green (Anticipated to be Fully Delivered)

» Key Savings & Income items for 2013/14 identified below

Management Savings – total £760K (Amber)

» Management restructuring proposals underway in Place 

Directorate.

» Restructuring implemented in Resources and People & 

Communities.

Corporate, Capital & Debt Charges – total £1.7M (Green)

» Recognises on-going approach to capital financing and 

£50M Debt Restructuring completed.

» £300K from reduced Carbon Levy and External Audit Fees 

achieved.

P
age 50



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Savings & Income Update (2)

Corporate Travel Plan - £500K (Red)

» Changes in Business and Travel practises of staff, reducing 

journeys and removal of Essential Car User allowance.

» Proposal currently being discussed with staff, managers and 

unions.

» Will impact on savings delivered in year 1 only.

Libraries - £245K (Green)

» Saving achieved from staff and operating costs at Bath 

Central Library and Mobile Library budgets.

S256 Funding, Adult Social Care - £500K (Green)

» S256 Funding confirmed via agreements with CCG

P
age 51



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Savings & Income Update (3)

Car Parking Charges - £250K (Green)

» Changes to Traffic Regulation Orders secured.

» Additional income being closely monitored.

» Small delay in implementation timing.

Roman Baths – Additional Net Surplus - £200K (Green)

» 5 year Business Plan agreed by Cabinet

» Income targets subject to regular monitoring – on target.

Public Protection - £263K (Amber)

» Some consolidation of service completed to deliver part of 

saving.

» Further options being reviewed.

P
age 52



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Savings & Income Update (4)

ICT Rationalisation - £350K (Green)

» ICT Transferred in-house from Mouchel on 1 August 2013.

» Centralisation of spend completed April 2013.

» New processes in place for IT procurement.

Property - £721K (Green)

» Split of commissioning and delivery role – saving achieved

» Project delivery arrangements being restructured

Commercial Estate Revenue - £550K (Amber)

» Specific options now being worked up to full business case

» Will be subject to release of Capital funding for acquisitions

P
age 53



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Years 2 and 3 Items

» Update included in all MTSRP’s to November PDS meetings

» Plans being developed in number of key areas including:

» Connexions

» Early years & Childrens Centres

» Sirona Contract

» ASC including Focus on Vulnerable Adults

» Libraries

» Tourism & Destination Management

» ICT

» Use of Assets

» Commercial Estate Revenue

» Variations provided for within MTSRP in respect of Use of 

Assets (£500k) and Trading Opportunity (£750K).

P
age 54



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING/
DECISION 
MAKER:  

Resources Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel 

 

MEETING/
DECISION 
DATE:  

18 November 2013 

 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 

[Cabinet reports only] 
E  

TITLE: Resources – Medium Term Plan Update 

WARD: All [or list specific wards] 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

 

List of attachments to this report: 

Draft Medium Term Plan update and attachments 

 
 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The draft Resources Medium Term Service & Resource Plan (MTSRP) update is 
presented for consideration by the Panel: 

(1) To ensure all members of the Panel are aware of the context for Service 
Action Planning and budget setting. 

(2) To enable comment on the progress being made on this 3 year plan. 

(3) To enable issues to be referred to the relevant Portfolio. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

The Panel is asked to:  

(1) Comment on the update to the 3 year medium term plan for Resources, 
focusing on matters affecting 2014/15, and note that will be the second year of 
the plan. 

(2) Identify any issues requiring further consideration and highlighting as part of 
the budget process for 2014/15. 

(3) Identify any issues arising from the draft plan it wishes to refer to the relevant 
portfolio holder for further consideration. 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 55



Printed on recycled paper 2

 

3 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

3.1 This medium term plan update forms the basis for the budget process for 2014/15 
and all relevant statutory matters are either referred to in this update or the 
original plan approved last year. 

4 THE REPORT 

4.1 This report forms part of the 2014/15 service and resource planning process.  As 
set out in the enclosed medium term plan update (attached), the next steps 
include: 

(1)  Panel comments considered by Portfolio Holders. 

(2) PDS Resources meeting in January/February to take overview of comments 
from Panels and progress on budget setting plus equalities issues.  

(3) February Cabinet budget recommendations to Council. 

(4) February Council approval of budget and Council Tax setting. 

4.2 The draft Medium Term Service & Resource Plan for Resources is attached and 
includes its own Appendices. 

5 RATIONALE 

5.1 Where the Panel wishes to either increase expenditure or reduce savings targets 
alternatives should be proposed.   

5.2 The Panel should concentrate only on the parts of the plan relevant to its own 
remit as the PDS Resources meeting in January/February will be taking an 
overview. 

6 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

6.1 This is a package of options as set out in the report and reflects the Council’s 
corporate plan, its vision and values, the medium term plan agreed last year, 
changes in legislation and the Cabinet’s priorities. 

7 CONSULTATION 

7.1 The corporate implications of this report have been considered by Strategic 
Management Team (SMT) including the Section 151 Finance Officer; Chief 
Executive & Monitoring Officer 

7.2 Further consultation has taken place as part of developing the revised Corporate 
Plan.  Budget fairs are taking place now and feedback from these will help finalise 
the budget proposals for 2014/15.  

7.3 Cabinet has been closely involved in the preparation of this update and in 
particular the relevant portfolio holder(s) 

 

Page 56



Printed on recycled paper 3

 

8 RISK MANAGEMENT 

8.1 A risk assessment will be completed as part of the final budget papers and inform 
the Council’s reserves strategy.  The main risks relate in the next financial year to: 

(1) The robustness of the savings estimates.  

(2) The potential for some service levels to deteriorate as a result of the savings, 
some savings are from service reductions but most savings are directed at 
efficiencies.  

(3) The implications for staff arising from savings, albeit that the costs of 
severance will be budgeted for corporately and unions are being consulted 
together with the affected staff. 

(4) The need to maintain a planned and phased approach to savings at a time 
when pressures are starting to require substantial and immediate cuts. 

(5) Equalities impacts of the savings. 

 

Contact person  Andrew Pate  Strategic Director – Resources Tel: 01225 477300 

Background 
papers 

Corporate Plan and 2013/14 budget papers plus medium term 
plans 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM SERVICE & RESOURCE PLAN UPDATE 

RESOURCES  

Business Support, Customer Services, Strategy & Performance, Property & Project 

Delivery plus Legal & Democratic Services 

2013-14 until 2015-16 

Introduction 

This is the second year of the period covered by the 2013-14 to 2015-16 medium term plans.  

The plans were reflected in the budget approved by Council in February 2013. The original 

plans can be found on the Council’s web site with the agenda papers for the November 2012 

PDS panels. 

This 2014-15 update is a summary of key changes affecting the plan and does not restate 

the information contained in the original plan. This update provides important background 

information to the 2014-15 budget process, which will culminate in a report to the February 

2014 meeting of Council. The February budget report will incorporate assumptions made as 

part of the three year planning process, summarise planned variations to the anticipated 

budget for 2014/15, seek approval for those variations and set both the budget and the 

consequent level of Council Tax for that year  

This document contains the following updates: 

• Strategic Context – financial, legal, service and policy headlines 

• Structural Changes – summary of the new management arrangements  

• Progress Achieved – how the delivery of the 3 year plan is progressing 

• Variations to the plan – proposed changes concentrating on 2014-15 

• Capital Programme – proposed alterations to the capital programme  

• Risks & Opportunities –key risks to delivery of the plan but also opportunities 

• Equalities – summary of approach 

Strategic Context 

The Corporate Plan and refreshed Council Vision remains the main policy context.  These 

documents can be found at http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/your-council-and-

democracy/vision-and-values 

The financial challenge was summarised last year.  This equated to a 40% reduction in the 

Council’s government grant funding over the period 2011/2012 to 2014/2015.  At this time 

the challenging outlook for local government funding as set out in the Autumn Statement in 

December 2012 looked to continue well into the future and over the period of the Medium 

Term Service and Resource Plan from 2013/2014 to 2015/2016 we estimated at least £30M 

of savings would be required. 

Since then there have been a series of Government announcements that have increased the 

challenge.  The key announcements and effects are as follows: 

Page 59



• The Budget Statement delivered by the Chancellor on 20 March 2013 provided for an 

additional 1% cut in council funding assessments for 2014/2015.  This actually 

equates to a further 2% reduction in grant (from 16% to 18%). 

• The Spending Review 13 announced by the Chancellor on 26 June 2013 covers the 

2014/2015 and 2015/2016 financial years and together with subsequent consultation 

documents, sets at least a 13.5% reduction in council funding assessments for 

2015/2016.  This actually equates to a 27% reduction in grant. 

Other key funding changes set out in the Spending Review 13 include:- 

• A requirement to pass 35% of New Homes Bonus funding to LEP’s from 2015/2016 

to support Single Local Growth Funds. 

• A reduction of 20% in the Education Support Grant in 2015/2016. 

• The confirmation of a Council Tax Freeze Grant for both 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 

equivalent to 1% of council tax for councils who freeze their council tax in these 

years. 

These changes, together with the existing savings to be identified, mean further savings of at 

least £7m for the Council need to be identified over the next two years.  This assumes the 

savings in the existing approved medium term plans are delivered in full. 

For 2014/15 the focus will be on the variations that are needed to the approved medium term 

plan to deliver a balanced Budget proposal for the Council in February 2014.  The Variations 

section of this update (below) provides further details of the projected Budget Gap for 

2014/2015 together with the specific proposals being considered to address this. 

The Cabinet’s aim remains to achieve the medium term plan with minimal alterations, but at 

the same time to reflect public feedback together with local and national policy changes.  

The Council has a good level of reserves and can use these to smooth the effects of policy 

changes and additional financial challenges. The indication from Treasury figures is that an 

equally tough set of financial targets will need to be repeated in the next 3 year plan which 

starts in 2016, and of course at that time the difficulty in meeting the challenge will have 

increased as efficiency opportunities will be less.   

In the case of the Resources Department the key policy context changes are 

• Provisional approval of the West of England (WoE) City Deal with B&NES set to 

become the accountable body for the £500M 25 year Economic Development Fund 

for the sub region. The WoE Regional Growth Fund grants for business are also 

administered by this Council as part of its key support role for the Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP). 

• New Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is due for implementation next 

year following the Hutton review. This medium term plan does not include the 

pensions fund, albeit B&NES has the lead for the WoE and the fund is administered 

in the Council’s Business Support Division. 

• New Council Procurement strategy with a “Think Local” theme to encourage local 

procurement and support for local businesses. 

• Implementation of the new Universal Credit system as part of the Government’s 

Welfare Reform agenda.  This will begin locally in February 2014 and will be very 

Page 60



gradually rolled out. B&NES is a pilot authority – working with Department of Work & 

Pensions who lead the programme - and is focusing on ensuring there is good local 

advice to support the implementation. 

• Appointment of Police & Crime Commissioners in November 2012 which transfers 

much of the community role for Community Safety to the Police Authority. 

• Publication of the Council’s new Health & wellbeing Strategy and also the new Joint 

Strategic needs Assessment that supports it.  

• Progress with the Workplaces Programme which will see flexible working and new 

office layouts plus completion of the new Keynsham offices, library, retail and one 

stop shop from October 2014.  Also new ICT strategy to support this and return of 

the ICT service in house last August. 

• New work led by the Place Department on a strategy for the Enterprise Area in Bath 

which will drive regeneration in that area and also help guide the programme for 

property disposals and achievement of capital receipts. 

In the case of Legal and Democratic Services, implementation of Individual Elector 

registration. 

Structural Changes 

The Resources Department was restructured with effect from 1 August 2013.  The following 

Divisions have been created: 

• Business Support 

• Customer Services 

• Strategy & Performance 

• Property & Project Delivery 

Some of the key changes linked to this are: 

• Review of the department’s objectives 

• Key efficiency savings including  achievement of £500K management savings 

• Clearer focus on priorities 

• Taking on project delivery functions from the former Major Projects department 

• Combining Improvement & Performance with Policy & Partnerships  

• Returning ICT and People Services in-house, and incorporating these services in the 

Business Support Division  

• Creating a new team for the remaining life of the Workplaces Programme to support 

cultural change – developing a One Council, community and customer focused 

approach - and improvements to the working environment including flexible working 

• Developing a shared service approach with North Somerset to Internal Audit and 

starting to explore other opportunities.   

Some further important details are that 

• Business Support incorporates a wider range of internal support roles for the Council 

including finance (S151), ICT, audit, people services and procurement 

• Libraries and Customer Services functions have been combined to give a better 

integrated service over time.   

Page 61



• Project Delivery and Property are being combined and this is to be fully effective 

from March 2014.   

• Legal & Democratic Services remain separate and report to the Chief Executive 

A new structure chart is attached together with a summary of the Department’s Objectives. 

Progress Achieved 

The 2013/14 Resources Department budget, including the achievement of management 

savings, is on target.  This provides a sound basis for the following two years of savings. 

The 2013/14 corporate budgets managed by Resources are also on target but note: 

• The removal of essential car user allowances and changes to other travel allowance 

entitlements for staff is delayed.  The aim is to move to HMRC rates at the start of 

2014 to save a recurring £500k.  Staff consultation is underway. 

• The increase in commercial estate income may also be slightly delayed and only a 

£250k saving is anticipated in 2013/14, being approximately half of the target. 

• The saving from restructuring of debt is due to exceed its target by £600k.  The target 

was £1.7m. 

The remaining two years of the medium term plan are attached at Appendix 1 and this has 

been updated to include a commentary on progress towards delivery of the approved 

savings and additional income streams. 

With the exception of the specific variations identified below, full delivery of the medium term 

plan is anticipated and any further changes considered by the Council would require the 

identification of further additional savings to balance the Budget. 

Variations to the Plan 

The variations to the medium term plan approved by the Council in Feb 2014 have arisen for 

2014/2015 for a number of reasons including:- 

• The implications of the 2013 Budget Statement and Spending Review 

• Unidentified savings in the approved medium term plan 

• Areas where savings or additional income are now unlikely to be delivered 

• Revenue impact of additional capital schemes 

In order to present proposals for a balanced budget in 2014/2015, the Cabinet have 

examined a range of options to generate the additional savings or income, required to 

address the arising Budget gap.  Where possible the Cabinet has sought to avoid further 

frontline service reductions and focus on efficiency, innovation, demand changes and trend 

analysis to meet this challenge. 

Full details of the variations are set out at Appendix 2 

Capital Programme 

A draft summary of proposed variations to the capital programme is attached at Appendix 3.  

This will be put forward for approval as part of the February budget report. 

Page 62



All the Resources schemes are designed to achieve additional savings or new capital 

receipts for the Council and so have a positive impact on the revenue budgets.  The most 

notable example is the plan to continue with more active commercial estate acquisitions 

where opportunities arise and where these have excellent returns.   

Risks & Opportunities 

There are significant efficiency targets in the plan and those arising from the changes in 

workplaces, customer services, and business support should not be understated.  Delivering 

them requires considerable management capacity although to date progress has been 

excellent. 

The future financial plans include an aspiration to combine various operation assets and link 

better with community organisations, the voluntary sector and public sector partners to do 

this.  This work is being scoped to see what in addition to the successful rationalisation of 

offices (as part of Workplaces) is possible.  The savings target for 2014-15 has been put 

back to 2015-16 for this programme. 

All other Resources Department plans are on track, albeit each of the changes in the 

strategic context section above has its own challenges.  The debt restructuring work has 

exceeded its target.  Overall the budget for the Resources Department for 2013-14 is on 

track. 

Equalities 

Equalities impacts of key changes are considered as service plans are set and as part of any 

key management change.  The main equalities impacts for Resources were assessed when 

the 3 year plan was set. 

 

Appendices 

1. Savings details – progress summary 2014/15 and 2015/16 

2. Proposed variations to 201415 budget 

3. Additional Capital schemes 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM SERVICE & RESOURCE PLAN – SAVING DETAILS (2014/15 & 2015/16)

RESOURCES

500 150

27

170

The team is expected to complete its existing phases of work in 

2015/16. The proposed saving represents a 50% cut in the budget 

relating to Customer Services business support. The ability to 

enable service improvements will be restricted in the future 

although the existing release schedule should be complete.

100

250

100 On target, Plans for delivery already in place.

6 17

On target, plans for delivery already in place

45 19

Transfer from Place Directorate. Detailed plan for achievement 

currently being worked on. Expected to be deliverable.

44

A review will be undertaken to assess how much work is routine 

and how much is one off change and can be funded 

differently.This has a relatively small budget impact.

Web site administration efficiencies No further staff impact expected

Improvement & Performance 
New open systems Drupal web site to require less resources to 

maintain.

Staff impact to be assessed. Savings include related support.

ICT Relates to assumed overheads of current contract 

In-sourcing of ICT function Staff impact to be assessed. 

Libraries 

Customer Services Project within the Change Programme Better customer service and lower processing costs

2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

How saving to be achieved Previously Reported Impact to Service Delivery

Business & Financial Services: P2P (Procure to Pay system)
The effective completion of this programme requires continued 

investment in the change from the relevant reserve. 

Rationalising procure to pay (P2P) and income systems in 

finance either using centralised or federated staffing model 

P2P will deliver further savings within Place (£92k) and People & 

Communities (£65k) which will require staff restructuring & 

consolidation within these Directorates

Customer Services 

The effective completion of this programme requires continued 

investment in the change from the relevant reserve and links to 

the capital programme. 

Link to Sirona ICT strategy to be evaluated 

Finance

£60K Change target relating directly to Resources procure to 

pay and £40K similar target for consolidation of income 

functions across the Council including from rationalising cash 

income system & systems, which support web based payments 

facility.

Rationalisation of systems, improved procurement & 

implementation of new ICT Strategy plus consolidation of 

budgets. 

Delivery dependent upon ICT transferring in-house on 1 August 

2013 & then centralisation and rationalisation of all ICT spend 

from 1 April 2013. 

This saving will apply across all departments and so is 

described as corporate even though will be led in the 

Resources Department. 

Reduced spend on ICT will mean ICT will be provided strictly to 

meet priority business needs 

New centralised or federated staffing model required Staffing impacts assessment when the service returns in house. 

ICT - Corporate

This saving is the balance remaining from the initial £1 million 

Change Programme target (£350k delivered in 12/13), and 

includessavins arising from new ICT strategy.

Full implementation will take 2 years. Benefits will also include 

accurate & up-to-date management information. 

Management Structure 
Consultation on a new management structure will start at the 

beginning of 2013.

Resources Department management structure to be reviewed
Following agreement of principles a more streamlined structure 

will be phased in.

Business Development

Stopping the business development service once the new way 

of working has been fully rolled out in 2015/16.

HR & Payroll – delivery model

New model for HR/Payroll service delivery agreed, consistent 

with future function and size of the Council. Currently subject to 

finalising the business case. 

New methods with less date inputting and more self service.

Savings are dependent upon insourcing of transactional and 

payroll functions from Mouchel and new software platform to 

support manager / employee self-service. 

Customer Services 
To be delivered as per Release 1 of customer services change 

plan.

New standardised and simplified customer contact 

arrangements

Budgets have been centralised across from all directorates on 

time. Currently monitoring spend against the centralised budget. It 

is envisaged that the full saving will be delivered even though this 

is challenging.

On target, plans for delivery already in place.  In addition to these 

savings the new approach improves the control of procurement 

and exenditure which in turn generates savings in services.

A project group has now been set up to move this forward. The 

programme is at an early stage.  The recently completed 

restructure in the Resources Department has enabled this work to 

be prioritised.

Current plans will deliver the target for 2014/15 but leave a new 

gap in 2015/16 due to the phased approach to delivery of the OD 

and workplaces programmes.  Some smaller scale management 

savings will be required at that time.  

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

This is a year 3 savings from simply stopping a service 

development function on the basis it will have become business 

as usual - The Business Development Team in Customer 

Services supports the customer services change programme – 

removing this team will mean the programme comes to an end in 

15/16 – the schedule suggests a one off source of resources in 

15/16 may be needed to sustain the programme through that 

year and then stop. 

Face to face customer service options retained but self serve 

and web improved. Also affects e billing and document 

management,

Page 65



2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

How saving to be achieved Previously Reported Impact to Service Delivery

Budgets have been centralised across from all directorates on 

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

230 On target, plans for delivery already in place.

The draft staffing structure of Property and Project delivery is 

anticipated to deliver this saving.

20 20
It is anticipated that this saving for 2014-15 will not be fully 

delivered.  Further review needed. This has only a small impact.

1222 476 Sub Total - Change Programme Savings

200

This is being considered along with the rest of ICT target and is to 

be achieved by the removal of the recurring project development 

budget. Any future costs to be met from, specific project budgets 

and separately approved.

200

A proposal for the achievement of this target is still being 

developed and implementaion may not be until later in 2014/15.  

The Resources Department management restructure will help to 

enable this saving.

50 Detailed plan for achievement currently being worked on.

25 Detailed plan for achievement currently being worked on.

16 6 On target, plans for delivery already in place.

75

Detailed plan for achievement currently being worked on. Some 

savings may come from external spend budgets elsewhere in the 

Council. External review of the legal service underway.

200
Detailed plan for achievement currently being worked on.  This is a 

2015/16 saving and is a higher risk item.

25

Review of service taking place to investigate whether savings 

deliverable through alternative operating model rather than 

reductions in specification.

Reduction in Cleaning spec across corporate offices

To mitigate this, a very effective risk based approach will be 

needed.

All other support services will be assessed to ensure no one 

service is disproportionately affected in year 3.  Metrics and 

benchmarking will be important.

Property

A slightly reduced cleaning specification, which could start to 

impact noticeably on building cleanliness - so will be kept under 

review especially in busy areas and busy building with flexible 

office space. . 

Cleaning

Reduced structure for Legal Services

Shared working on specialist aspects of the service with other 

authorities to be accelerated to see if further efficiencies can be 

found. 

Finance This level of savings will need to be measured carefully. 

More savings in management of finance to reduce the service 

to a core service

As with legal and HR the risk is that the services will start to 

decline below acceptable levels and in this case qualification of 

accounts becomes a risk. 

Corporate Estate – efficiencies No direct staff impact.

The main savings relate to workplaces and have already been 

accounted for as part of that project.

Separate savings relate to R&M for which see below.

Legal & Democratic 

A 15% cut in legal support (split over 2 years) that will require 

clearer prioritisation of support based on impact and risk as 

assessed by the Council on a corporate basis. Any substantial 

legal challenges will need to be funded from project budgets or 

Council central contingency reserves.

Information Governance Staff impact to be assessed.

Rationalisation with ICT Service

Property
Reductions in corporate estate budgets to deal with one off 

work.

Consolidation of Procurement & Commissioning Support 

across the Council to increase resilience and sustain 

acceptable level of capacity and skills.

Staff impact to be assessed.

Audit Risk & Assurance

Similar to the above but in respect of ICT & Information 

Governance roles following in sourcing of ICT contract. Potential 

links to the Resources management review

Audit Risk & Assurance

Similar to the above but in respect of commissioning and 

procurement support.  Scope to centralise or federate staff plus 

potential links to the Resources management review.

Consolidation of support areas across Resources including 

democratic meetings support, aspects of information 

management, performance management and reporting. 

Staff impacts unknown at this stage but assumption made based 

on level of saving

There may be some corporate aspects to this review and 

potential links to the Resources management review.

Policy, Performance & Administration in Resources 

Department

Review to primarily affect democratic services, policy and 

partnerships plus improvement and performance to integrate 

functions and reduce systems and processes.

Removal of recurring budget 

How saving to be achieved Impact to Service Delivery

Transformation 

Gradual removal of all project budgets much of which is spent 

on lean systems thinking reviews, project support to Council 

services and ICT projects. Replacement with one off funding 

from reserves as required.

2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

Property 
Business to be run at scaled back level to test viability of this 

approach.

Print procurement and delivery efficiencies. For more specialist work a new framework contract is in place.

Property

Some mitigation may be achieved by splitting the delivery and 

commissioning roles and combining some of delivery with 

project delivery elsewhere in the Council.  

Property Services - Reduction in staffing levels to facilitate 

20% reduction target

A less responsive service will result including ability to take 

forward development opportunities unless one off development 

budgets can be identified.  The rolling development fund helps 

with this but will need to be topped up from time to time.

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

Page 66



2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

How saving to be achieved Previously Reported Impact to Service Delivery

Budgets have been centralised across from all directorates on 

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

500 500

Initial discussions regarding strategy for implemetation has 

commenced, discussions are still at very early stages, however 

indications suggest that delivery will be challenging in 2015/16 and 

is not deliverable in 2014/15.  The overall budget estimates 

now allow for this.

1,091 706 Sub Total - Other Cashable Efficiency Savings

250 200
Dependant on market opportunities being available but a plan is in 

place.

Target in 2014/15 and 2015/16 is likely to be achieved.  The 

current years target for 2013/14 will partially slip into next year.

29 62
There are some concerns as to the delivery of the savings target in 

2015/16.

Additional Advertising income

This saving will apply across all departments and so is 

described as corporate even though will be led in the 

Resources Department

Increased revenue income through investment in Commercial 

properties.

One example of such an acquisition has already been achieved 

in the current financial year and represents an early move 

towards this target. A more diversified property portfolio and 

support for regeneration are possible additional benefits.

The Council as a whole benefits from the income in this 

estate, which presently is a net £13M.

Over the next three years, the capital borrowed to fund the 

acquisitions is intended to be repaid using new capital receipts 

to be generated from lease restructuring which has no 

significant impact upon existing revenue streams. 

Improvement & Performance - corporate

Income to be generated through increased advertising using the 

Council’s web site and other means such as bus stops, traffic 

islands, and events.

How saving to be achieved Impact to Service Delivery

Property

This arises from the potential to invest in properties with secure 

returns that exceed those available through usual treasury 

management opportunities. 

Commercial Estate

The acquisitions need to be linked to the enhancement of the 

Council’s estate and to therefore achieve wider property 

objectives. 

2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

Policy & Partnerships + Property

Review of use of Council owned operational assets based in 

communities to see which ones might be better run by the 

communities themselves, also which should be consolidated and 

which sold off.  Also affected by the new statutory ‘right to bid’.

Community Use of Assets – Corporate Asset Consolidation

There is a risk that aspects of this saving might be double 

counted with savings elsewhere in medium term plans but this 

will not be evident until the review progresses.

This saving will apply across all departments and so is 

described as corporate even though will be led in the 

Resources Department

The review does not include the Councils main offices, which 

have been reviewed and are being rationalised as part of the 

workplaces programme.  The savings from this have already 

been accounted for. 

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

Page 67



2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

How saving to be achieved Previously Reported Impact to Service Delivery

Budgets have been centralised across from all directorates on 

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

500 500

500 250 Finance – corporate

This target for 2014/15 will not be achieved as it relates to 

potential opportunities from trading and procurement activity not 

available in the short term.  Procurement targets being reassessed 

to see what can be achieved in future years.  The corporate 

budgets now allow for this not being achieved in 2014/15.

Trading Opportunities 

1,279 1,012 Sub Total - Additional Income

20 45

2015/16 delivery plans require further work but 2014/15 well 

advanced and deliverable.

255 Changes to mobile library service already implemented in 2013/14.

Transferred from Place.  Detailed plan for achievement currently 

being worked on.

85 Budget has been reduced and staff working towards new target. 

Adopting a corporate landlord approach will leverage economies of 

scale and increased purchasing power. The idea is to centralise 

property management and spending (as with ICT).

360 45 Sub Total - Reduced Service Levels

3,952 2,239 TOTAL SAVINGS

Repairs and Maintenance

Reductions in R&M budgets

Property 

A significant reduction in the budget of about 20%, which will 

mean that the already highly prioritised approach will be 

restricted further.  Condition of assets will need to be monitored. 

Rationalisation and renewal of corporate estate, especially. 

offices will help.  

These savings coupled with savings delivered in 2012/3 leaves 

the service commissioning in 2013/14, local Healthwatch (new 

statutory responsibility) £72k, the reducing Christmas lights 

budget £70k, a contract on Voluntary and Community Sector 

support £65k, Street Marshalls work with the BID £21k, the 

Councils contribution to the Student Community Partnership 

£18k and some capacity to support some work with Equalities 

groups £40k

Partnership Delivery  

1     Removal of dedicated budgets for local initiatives and events.   

Currently £19k used to complement local projects, including 

Christmas events and some co-ordination of local partnership 

activity. Budget has been reduced over the years and 

communities have been assisted in obtaining funding from other 

sources such as Ward Councillors Initiative

 Commissioned services and local events budgets

2     Savings from Christmas lighting budget in first year leading to 

ending of this budget at end of current contract. Budget currently 

£81k will reduce by £11k in year one, Year 2 and 3 savings 

assume that we have been able to generate income to fund  

Christmas Lights

3     Saving from community safety budgets which will be 

achieved through continuing the change programme the 

Partnership began last year in the light of the advent of PCCs. 

Saving proposed £30k from a £40k budget set up in the 2012/13 

budget to provide some flexibility in the transitional period

Libraries & Information                                                                                      

To prioritise the retention of our eight Library branches we 

propose to deliver the services differently in the future with 

support from our emerging Community Library Programme.

Involves no replacement of one mobile library (estimated cost of 

replacement c.£90,000)                                                                 

Fewer visits and for less time at stop-offs by the one remaining 

Mobile Library - this will be offset by the development of the 

Community Library Programme to provide services in 

communities without a library branch; restructuring of service; 

reduction in materials, and some PC's and services.                                                                                                            

Consultation last year indicated how strongly people felt about 

provision of library branches and willingness to be involved in 

shaping their local library service

Policy & Partnerships Savings relate to 

Impact to Service Delivery

This saving will affect a number of departments, is described 

as corporate and will be led in the Resources Department

2014-15 

Saving 

£000

2015-16 

Saving 

£000

How saving to be achieved

Tourism Levy
Any such levy would be subject to widespread consultation and 

appropriate due diligence.

This saving is described as corporate and will be led in the 

Resources Department

The Council has a number of trading partners and the aspiration 

is to review those relationships to assess the potential to 

increase Council income.  

These reviews will initially need to be treated as commercially 

sensitive.

Finance - corporate

There is potential to introduce some form of tourism levy so that 

the Council’s day-to-day investment in tourism and visitors can 

continue to be supported.

Strategic Directors Update on Saving Proposal for November 

2013 PDS Panel

This will be a voluntary visitor contribution scheme and a detailed 

feasibility of options is now under way. 

Page 68



Sub Total 2014/15 2015/16 2YR

£M's £M's £M's TOTAL £M's

Opening Budget Gap - based on Financial Planning Model 1.80 5.00 6.80

Medium Term Plan Variations

 - Trading Opprtunities 0.50 0.25 0.75

 - Community Assets / Asset Consolidation 0.50 0.50

 - Adjustments to MTSRP Growth -0.45 -0.15

 - Additional Capital Proposals (Revenue Costs) 1.00 0.40 1.40

Total Estimated Budget Gap 3.35 5.50 9.45

Further Savings Proposals for 2014/2015

Corporate

Ongoing additional debt interest savings arising from debt 

restructuring in 2013/2014 1.00

Increase in the assumed Council Tax Collection Rate from 

98.25% to 98.75% 0.40

Reductions in External Audit Fees following changes to Audit 

Commission and new contracting arrangements 0.05

Reduction in cost of historic unfunded pensions relating to 

previous Avon Council 0.03

Miscellaneous - review of other retained corporate budgets 0.05

1.53

Place

Waste Related Budgets - reducing tonnages of waste (including 

landfill)
0.25

Heritage - additional increased income target 0.25

Transport - demand for concessionary fares 0.07

Park & Ride - increased income 0.07

0.64

People & Communities

Adult Social Care - more efficient home care contract 

arrngements.
0.50

0.50

Resources

Housing Benefits - technical subsidy adjustment 0.20

Procurement and Efficiency savings 0.20

Property Budgets - Efficiency Savings linked to review of 

Regeneration and Skills*
0.15

0.55

TOTAL SAVINGS IDENTIFIED 3.22

REMAINING BUDGET GAP / (SURPLUS) 0.14 5.50 5.64

PROPOSED VARIATIONS TO 2014/2015 BUDGET

APPENDIX 2

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Additional Capital Schemes - 2014/15 - 2018/19 - Resources Directorate Appendix 3

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Future 

Years

Total Cost

Grant / S106 / 

Third Party 

Other

Service 

Supported 

Borrowing

Unfunded / 

Contingency / 

Borrowing

Capital Receipts Total

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Administration Priority Schemes

Strategy & 

Performance
Community Partnership Grants            1,000            1,000                        1,000            1,000 

Strategy & 

Performance
Cleveland Pools               200               200                           200               200 

Support 

Services
Green Investment & Job Opportunities Fund            1,000 1,000                                 -                         -                          1,000                              -              1,000 

Sub Total - Administration Priority            2,200                 -                    -                   -                    -                    -              2,200                       -                         -                          2,200                              -              2,200 

Income Schemes

Property 

Services 
1 - 3 James Street West               135 25 15 175                                    -                         -                                -                             175               175 

Property 

Services 
7 - 9 Lower Borough Walls                 55 20 75                                      -                        75                              -                                -                   75 

Property 

Services 
Acquisitions - Future Revenue Generation          10,000 5,000 15,000                               -                 15,000                              -                                -            15,000 

Property 

Services 
Bath Quays            1,000 1,000                                 -                         -                                -                          1,000            1,000 

Property 

Services 
Cattlemarket/Cornmarket                 35 15 50                                      -                         -                                -                               50                 50 

Property 

Services 
Commercial Estate Development Fund               200 200                                    -                      200                              -                                -                 200 

Property 

Services 
Englishcombe Lane                 20 10 30                                      -                         -                                -                               30                 30 

Property 

Services 
Grand Parade and Undercroft - Phase 2            1,000 1,000                                 -                   1,000                              -                                -              1,000 

Property 

Services 
Grand Parade and Undercroft - Phase 3 3,700 3,700                                 -                   3,700                              -                                -              3,700 

Property 

Services 
Roseberry Place                 25 15 10 50                                      -                         -                                -                               50                 50 

Support 

Services
New Customer Payments & Library Kiosks               145 145                                    -                      145                              -                                -                 145 

Sub Total - Income Schemes          12,615            8,785                 25                 -                    -                    -            21,425                       -                 20,120                              -                          1,305          21,425 

Schemes linked to Savings

Support 

Services
Agresso System Development & 5.6 Upgrade               143 143                                    -                      143                              -                                -                 143 

Support 

Services
IT Asset Refresh               283 347 630                                    -                      630                              -                                -                 630 

Support 

Services

Civica Income Management System 

Developments
                60 60                                      -                        60                              -                                -                   60 

Sub Total - Schemes linked to Savings               486               347                  -                   -                    -                    -                 833                       -                      833                              -                                -                 833 

Overall Total          15,301            9,132                 25                 -                    -                    -            24,458                       -                 20,953                        2,200                        1,305          24,458 

Funding Source

Service Project Title

Estimated Costs

E:\moderngov\data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\1\AI00010139\$0alolkya.xlsx

Summary(Clean Version) 11/11/13 11:22

P
age 71



P
age 72

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Business 

Support  

Tim Richens 

Customer 

Services 

Ian Savigar 

Strategy & 

Performance  

David 

Trethewey 

Property 

Tom McBain 

Project 

Delivery 

Derek Quilter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Business Change  

 

Finance & Pensions  

 

People Services  

   

ICT 

 

Procurement  

   

Internal Audit  

 

Revolving Infrastructure & 

Regional Growth Funds 

 

Customer Services Change  

 

Council Connect 

 

Libraries 

 

Council Tax  

 

Business Rates 

 

Council Tax Support 

(Benefits) 

 

Welfare Reform 

 

Emergency Planning 

One Council Organisational 

Development (OD)  

 

Connecting Communities  

 

Policy Co-ordination 

 

Communications 

 

Equalities 

 

Performance Management 

 

HR 

 

Health & Safety 

 

Sustainability 

Workplaces Change 

Programme 

 

Commercial Estate 

 

Corporate Estate 

 

Facilities Management 

 

Asset Management & 

property transactions 

 

Print, cleaning & 

catering trading services  

Keynsham Town Centre scheme  

 

Capital project delivery – 

several major schemes 

 

Capital programme co-

ordination 

 

Property maintenance 

delivery 

 

Programme & project 

support 

 

 

Strategic Director 

Resources 

Andrew Pate 

Notes 

• Change themes are shown in italics 

• This is a not a complete list of the functions in each Division 

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

APPENDIX  

P
age 73



P
age 74

T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 

 

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT OBJECTIVES 

 
 
Our purpose: 
 

• To enable the Council as a whole to achieve excellence 
 

and  
 

• To enable the best outcomes for the Community and the Council by  
 

• providing the right awareness of the challenges from a customer, 
community, strategic and financial perspective 

 

• Supporting service delivery in the most appropriate way 
 
 
With specific responsibility to: 
 

• Provide excellent customer services through one stop shops, over the 
phone plus increasingly through the web, and where possible to do so 
jointly with key partners in and beyond the public sector. 

 

• Create a simple framework for working effectively with communities 
which involves all Council services, other public sector providers, together 
with business and voluntary sector partners 

 

• Provide a comprehensive framework for the resourcing, development, 
management, engagement and motivation of staff  as the Council 
changes and faces new challenges and opportunities – the Council as an 
‘employer of choice’ 

 

• Provide excellent, low cost and integrated support services for the 
Council as a whole and for other partners where appropriate 

 

• Provide excellent financial planning and advice  
 

• Manage all the Council’s assets effectively including its corporate estate, 
maximise the use of assets, create income, maintain a prosperous city 
centre, and support regeneration activity across the district. 

 

• Provide a centre of excellence for project delivery in particular for capital 
projects, property maintenance and infrastructure projects 

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



     

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 P

D
S

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 

 
T
h
is
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 l
is
ts
 a
ll 
th
e
 i
te
m
s
 c
o
m
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
fe
w
 m

o
n
th
s
. 

In
e
v
it
a
b
ly
, 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
m
a
y
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
; 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
p
la
n
 
is
 
a
 
b
e
s
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im

e
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
, 
o
f 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 o
n
lin
e
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P

la
n
 i
s
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
t:
 

h
tt
p
:/
/d
e
m
o
c
ra
c
y
.b
a
th
n
e
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
/m

g
P
la
n
s
H
o
m
e
.a
s
p
x
?
b
c
r=
1
 

T
h
e
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
. 
 I
t 
a
s
s
is
ts
 t
h
e
 

P
a
n
e
l 
in
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
p
u
t 
to
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
rm

u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 i
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
 

S
h
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
u
th
o
r 
o
r 
M
ic
h
a
e
la
 G

a
y
, 
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
0
1
2
2
5
 

3
9
4
4
1
1
).
  
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 5
 c
le
a
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
  

A
g
e
n
d
a
 p
a
p
e
rs
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 a
t 
th
e
 G
u
ild
h
a
ll 
(B
a
th
),
 H
o
lli
e
s
 (
M
id
s
o
m
e
r 
N
o
rt
o
n
),
 R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 

(K
e
y
n
s
h
a
m
) 
a
n
d
 a
t 
B
a
th
 C
e
n
tr
a
l,
 K
e
y
n
s
h
a
m
 a
n
d
 M
id
s
o
m
e
r 
N
o
rt
o
n
 p
u
b
lic
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s

.
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 14

Page 77



 

1
 

R
e
s
o

u
r
c
e
s
 P

D
S

 F
o

rw
a
r
d

 P
la

n
 

 

B
a

th
 &

 N
o

r
th

 E
a

s
t 

S
o

m
e

r
s

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 
A
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
fu
tu
re
 P
a
n
e
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

R
e
f 

D
a
te
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r/
s
 

T
it
le
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 A
u
th
o
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

L
e
a
d
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 1
8
T
H
 N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

1
8
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

 
T
im
 R
ic
h
e
n
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
4
6
8
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

1
8
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
3
0
0
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

1
8
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 
S
te
v
e
 H
a
rm

a
n
 

 
A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

1
8
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

 
T
im
 R
ic
h
e
n
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
4
6
8
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

1
8
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
f 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 W
o
rk
p
la
c
e
s
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

 
D
a
v
id
 T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 3
9
4
3
6
8
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 1
3
T
H
 J
A
N
U
A
R
Y
 2
0
1
4
 -
 R
E
S
E
R
V
E
 D
A
T
E
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 1
0
T
H
 F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y
 2
0
1
4
 

Page 78



  

2
 

R
e
f 

D
a
te
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r/
s
 

T
it
le
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 A
u
th
o
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

L
e
a
d
 

1
0
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
4
 

 
1
2
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
4
 

 
1
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
4
 

 
E
2
5
9
2
 

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
&
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

- 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 
T
im
 R
ic
h
e
n
s
 

 
G
a
ry
 A
d
a
m
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
4
6
8
 

 
T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
1
0
7
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 1
7
T
H
 M
A
R
C
H
 2
0
1
4
 

1
7
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
4
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
G
ra
n
d
 P
a
ra
d
e
 a
n
d
 U
n
d
e
rc
ro
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
T
o
m
 M
c
B
a
in
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
8
0
6
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

1
7
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
4
 

   

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 P
D
S
 

 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
Ia
n
 S
a
v
ig
a
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
3
2
7
 

A
n
d
re
w
 P
a
te
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 1
2
T
H
 M
A
Y
 2
0
1
4
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 2
1
S
T
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
4
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 P
D
S
 P
A
N
E
L
 -
 1
5
T
H
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
4
 

 

T
h
e
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 i
s
 a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 b
y
 D
E
M
O
C
R
A
T
IC
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
: 
 M
ic
h
a
e
la
 G
a
y
 0
1
2
2
5
 3
9
4
4
1
1
  
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
_
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
@
b
a
th
n
e
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 30TH SEPTEMBER 2013
	8 Impact on Customers of Organisational Development and Workplaces Programmes
	9 Performance Management
	10 Procurement
	11 Update on Budget Savings and Income Delivery
	12 Medium Term Plans and 2014/15 Budget Update Report
	MEDIUM TERM SERVICE PLAN
	MTSRPAppendix1
	MTSRPAppendix2
	MTSRPAppendix3
	MTP Tabled Appendix
	MTP Tabled Appendix 2

	14 Panel Workplan

